
 

 

 
 

City of Apopka 
Planning Commission 

Special Meeting Agenda 
July 28, 2015 

5:01 PM @ CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 
I.     CALL TO ORDER 

II.    OPENING AND INVOCATION 

III.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

IV.    PUBLIC HEARING: 

V.     SITE PLANS: 

1. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – Elro Properties, LLC – Owner/applicant Elro 
Properties, LLC; Engineer Ali Tehrani, P.E., property located at 511 Marshall 
Lake Road (north of Marshall Lake Road and west of Bradshaw Road). (Parcel 
ID No.: 09-21-28-0000-00-011) 

 
2. MASS GRADING PLAN - Golden Gem Estates, Phase 1A – owner/applicant 

Cantero Holdings, LLC, c/o Jose Cantero; engineer is GL Summit, c/o Geoffrey 
Summit, P.E., for the property generally located south of Kelly Park Road, north 
of the Ponkan Road and east of Golden Gem Road. (Parcel ID Nos.: 24-20-27-
0000-00-097, 24-20-27-0000-00-98, 24-20-27-0000-00-100, 24-20-27-0000-00-
101, 24-20-27-0000-00-102,  24-20-27-0000-00-100-103, 24-20-27-0000-00-
104, 24-20-27-0000-00-105) 

 
3. PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - Golden Gem Estates, Phase 1B – 

owner/applicant Cantero Holdings, LLC, c/o Jose Cantero; engineer is GL 
Summit, c/o Geoffrey Summit, P.E., for the property generally located south of 
Kelly Park Road, north of the Ponkan Road and east of Golden Gem Road. 
(Parcel ID Nos.: 24-20-27-0000-00-097, 24-20-27-0000-00-98, 24-20-27-0000-
00-100, 24-20-27-0000-00-101, 24-20-27-0000-00-102,  24-20-27-0000-00-100-
103, 24-20-27-0000-00-104, 24-20-27-0000-00-105) 

1



Page 2 
 

 

 
4. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – Marden Ridge – owned by Emerson Point 

Associates, LLLP; Applicant MMI Development, Inc., c/o Michael E. Wright, 
Esq.; Engineer GAI Consultants, Inc., c/o Anthony Call, P.E., property located 
Between S.R. 451 and Marden Road, south of Ocoee Apopka Road, and north 
of the Apopka Expressway. (Parcel ID No.: 17-21-28-0000-00-029) 

 
VI.    OLD BUSINESS: 

VII.   NEW BUSINESS: 

VIII.  ADJOURNMENT:  

********************************************************************************************************** 
All interested parties may appear and be heard with respect to this agenda.  Please be advised that, under state law, if you decide to appeal 
any decision made by the City Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, you will need a record of the 
proceedings, and that, for such purpose, you may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes a 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.   The City of Apopka does not provide a verbatim record.    
 
In accordance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), persons with disabilities needing a special accommodation to participate in any 
of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk's Office at 120 East Main Street, Apopka, FL  32703, telephone (407) 703-1704, no less 
than 48 hours prior to the proceeding. 
  

2



Page 3 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – Elro Properties, LLC – Owner/applicant Elro 

Properties, LLC; Engineer Ali Tehrani, P.E., property located at 511 Marshall 

Lake Road (north of Marshall Lake Road and west of Bradshaw Road). (Parcel 

ID No.: 09-21-28-0000-00-011) 

  

3



    

CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISION 

   

  
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

  X  PUBLIC HEARING   MEETING OF: July 28, 2015 

       ANNEXATION   FROM:  Community Development  

       PLAT APPROVAL       EXHIBITS: Vicinity/Aerial Map 

  X  OTHER: Final Development Plan    Site/Landscape Plans 

              Building Elevations 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

PROJECT:                ELRO PROPERTIES, LLC. 

       
Request: RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR 

ELRO PROPERTIES, LLC. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY: 

 

OWNER/APPLICAN: Elro Properties, LLC 

 

ENGINEER:                         Ali Tehrani, P.E. 

 

LOCATION: 511 Marshall Lake Road  

(North of Marshall Lake Road and west of Bradshaw Road) 

 

PARCEL ID #:  09-21-28-0000-00-011 

 

LAND USE: Industrial 

 

ZONING: I-1 

 

EXISTING USE:                    Vacant Land 

 

PROPOSED USE: Industrial Warehouse (18,000 S.F.) w/ Office Complex (11,340 S.F.)   

 

TRACT SIZE:   6.46 +/- acres  

 

OVERALL SITE                    26.64 +/- acres   

 

BUILDING SIZE: 29,340 sq. ft. 

 

 

__________________________________________________________________________________________  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director    Public Ser. Director 

Commissioners (4)           HR Director     City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby      IT Director     Fire Chief  

Community Dev. Director        Police Chief    

 
G:\Shared\4020\Planning_Zoning\Site Plans\Elro Properties\1 Elro Properties FDP PC 07-28-15   

 4



PLANNING COMMISSION – JULY 28, 2015 
ELRO PROPERTIES, LLC - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Commercial C-3 Warehouse Facility\Railroad track 

East (City) Commercial C-3 Vacant Property 

South (City) Industrial I-1 Vacant Property 

West (City) Industrial I-1 Vacant Property 

         

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The Elro Properties, LLC - Final Development Plan proposes a 29,340 square 

foot industrial warehouse and office complex.  Prior to commencement of any clearing or grading of the subject 

property, a parcel split must be submitted to the Orange County Property Appraiser’s office. 

       

PARKING AND ACCESS:  A total of 82 parking spaces are provided, of which four are reserved as a 

handicapped parking space.  Access to the site is provided by a driveway cut along Bradshaw Road and 

Marshall Lake Road.   

 

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS:  Design of the building exterior meets the intent of the City’s Development 

Design Guidelines.  Height of the building is presently 35 feet.  The property owner has submitted a zoning 

application to allow maximum building height not to exceed 50 feet.  

   

STORMWATER:   Stormwater run-off and drainage will be accommodated by an off-site retention pond 

through a cross access easement agreement.  The off-site stormwater management system will be designed 

according to standards set forth in the Land Development Code. All cross-access easement documents must be 

recorded prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy. 

 

BUFFER/TREE PROGRAM:   A twenty-five foot landscape buffer is provided along Bradshaw Road and 

Marshall Lake Road. The applicant has provided a detailed landscape and irrigation plan for the property. The 

planting materials and irrigation system design are consistent with the water-efficient landscape standards set 

forth in Ordinance No. 2069.   

 

Total inches on-site: 176 

Total number of specimen trees: 0 

Total inches removed 132 

Total inches retained: 44 

Total inches required: 132 

Total inches replaced: 171 

Total inches post development: 215 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
July 28, 2015 - Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

August 5, 2015 - City Council (1:30 pm)  

  

5



PLANNING COMMISSION – JULY 28, 2015 
ELRO PROPERTIES, LLC - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 3 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Elro Properties, LLC – Final Development 

Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

Recommend approval of the Elro Properties, LLC – Final Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff 

report. 
 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

6



PLANNING COMMISSION – JULY 28, 2015 
ELRO PROPERTIES, LLC - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 4 

 
Application:  Final Development Plan 

Owner:   Elro Properties, LLC 

Engineer:  Ali Tehrani, P.E. 
Parcel I.D. No:    09-21-28-0000-00-011 
Location:  511 Marshall Lake 
Total Acres:  6.46 +/- Acres 

 
 
 

 

 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 

 

SUBJECT 
PROPERTY 

7



PLANNING COMMISSION – JULY 28, 2015 
ELRO PROPERTIES, LLC - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 5 

 

Application:  Final Development Plan 

Owner:   Elro Properties, LLC 

Engineer:  Ali Tehrani, P.E. 

Parcel I.D. No:    09-21-28-0000-00-011 

Location:              511 Marshall Lake Road 

Total Acres:              6.46 +/- Acres 

 

 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 
 

 

Subject 

Property 

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



Page 19 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. MASS GRADING PLAN - Golden Gem Estates, Phase 1A – owner/applicant 

Cantero Holdings, LLC, c/o Jose Cantero; engineer is GL Summit, c/o Geoffrey 

Summit, P.E., for the property generally located south of Kelly Park Road, north 

of the Ponkan Road and east of Golden Gem Road. (Parcel ID Nos.: 24-20-27-

0000-00-097, 24-20-27-0000-00-98, 24-20-27-0000-00-100, 24-20-27-0000-00-

101, 24-20-27-0000-00-102,  24-20-27-0000-00-100-103, 24-20-27-0000-00-

104, 24-20-27-0000-00-105) 

  

19



CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  July 28, 2015 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 
   X    OTHER: Mass Grading Plan       Mass Grading Plan 
            
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: MASS GARDING PLAN – GOLDEN GEM ESTATES - PHASE 1A  
 

Request: RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE MASS GRADING PLAN FOR GOLDEN 

GEM ESTATES, OWNED BY CANTERO HOLDINGS, LLC. (PARCEL ID 

NUMBERS: 24-20-27-0000-00-097, 24-20-27-0000-00-098, 24-20-27-0000-00-100, 24-

20-27-0000-00-100, 24-20-27-0000-00-101, 24-20-27-0000-00-102, 24-20-27-0000-00-

103, 24-20-27-0000-00-104, 024-20-27-0000-00-105) 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Cantero Holdings, LLC., c/o Mr. Jose Cantero 
 
ENGINEER:   GL Summit., c/o Goeffrey Summit, P.E. 
 
LOCATION:               South of Kelly Park Road, north of the Ponkan Road and east of  

Golden Gem Road 
 
EXISTING USE:  Planted Pine Site 
 
FUTURE LAND USE:  Rural Settlement (1du/ac) 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  AG  
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: 12 Single Family Residential Subdivision\Mass Grading of Final Development 

Plans 
 
TRACT SIZE:              80 +/- Acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 80 Units  
    PROPOSED: 12 Units (PHASE 1A)  
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer      Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director    Police Chief   
 
G:\Shared\4020\Planning_Zoning\Site Plans\2015\1 Golden Gem Estates Mass Grading Plan – PC 07-28-15 
 

 20



PLANNING COMMISSION – JULY 28, 2015 

GOLDEN GEM ESTATES– MASS GRADING PLAN, PHASE 1A 
PAGE 2 
 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Mixed Use ZIP Vacant Land\Planted Pine Trees 

North (County) Rural (1du/10 ac/agricultural) A-1 Foliage Nursery 

East (County) Rural (1du/10 ac/agricultural) A-2  Manufactured Home\Grazing Land 

South (City) Rural Settlement(1du/ac)/Conservation ZIP Manufactured Home\Planted Pine Trees 

West (County) Rural (1du/10 ac/agricultural) A-1 Construction, Debris, and Class 3 Land Fill 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:   The proposed mass grading plan allows site grading to occur consistent with 

the ground elevations and contours established within the Golden Gem Estates - Phase 1B Preliminary Devel-

opment Plan.  All required permits from the St. Johns Water Management District and other state agencies must 

be obtained by the applicant prior to commencing any grading activities.   Planted pine has already been har-

vested from the subject property, leaving few canopy trees.   

 

HAUL ROUTE:  There has been a temporary access easement agreement established with the abutting proper-

ty owner to the east, granting direct access to Wekiva Parkway (S.R. 429) as illustrated on Sheet 4, of the Mass 

Grading Plan. 

  

ENVIRONMENTAL:  A habitat management plan was submitted by the applicant.  Based on the results of 

this study, the developer must obtain approval from the Florida Department of Environmental Protection prior 

to commencing any grading or further site construction activity. 

 

TREE PROGRAM: The planted pine located on this site is exempt from the arbor mitigation requirements and 

was harvested for silviculture purposes.  Pine trees have already been harvested from the site. The applicant will 

be required to demonstrate the site meets this tree stock requirement on the final development plan or contribute 

into the tree bank mitigation program, if applicable. 

 

LANDSCAPING\BUFFERS:    Per city code, a six-foot brick wall within a ten-foot landscape buffer is re-

quired along Golden Gem Road.  However, a brick wall will be out of character with the surrounding landscape 

and environment.  In lieu of a brick wall, a 50-foot wide landscape buffer is proposed.  The City owns acres to 

the south, the landfill is located to the west, and large lot residential uses occur to the south and north along 

Golden Gem Road.  Further north along Golden Gem Road, the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Area 

is just to the north along Golden Gem Road, and it promotes a pedestrian-oriented development theme.  Further, 

it is unreasonable to believe that a 12 lot residential development, which could be trailer homes, can financially 

support maintenance and replacement of a brick wall at such time it deteriorates or is damaged. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: No development activity beyond the grading activities approved within the 

Mass Grading Plan can occur until such time that a concurrency mitigation agreement or letter has been ap-

proved by OCPS.  The applicant has applied to OCPS for this agreement.  The developer has submitted a school 

capacity determination application to OCPS.  The schools designated to serve this community are the following: 

Zellwood Elementary, Wolf Lake Middle and Apopka High School.  

 

21



PLANNING COMMISSION – JULY 28, 2015 

GOLDEN GEM ESTATES– MASS GRADING PLAN, PHASE 1A 
PAGE 3 
 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The County was notified at the time of the land use amendment and 

rezoning application for this property, and coordination occurred with County planning staff regarding impact 

on adjacent parcels.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

July 28, 2015 – Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

August 5, 2015 – City Council (1:30 pm)  

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Golden Gem Estates Ph.1A Mass Grading 

Plan for the property owned by Cantero Holding, LLC  

 

Planning Commission Recommendation:  The role of the Planning Commission for this development 

application, is to advise the City Council to approve or deny based on the consistency with the Comprehensive 

Plan and Land Development Code.  

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

22



PLANNING COMMISSION – JULY 28, 2015 

GOLDEN GEM ESTATES– MASS GRADING PLAN, PHASE 1A 
PAGE 4 
 

Golden Gem Estates, Phase 1A 
Mass Grading Plan 

Cantero Holdings, LLC., c/o Mr. Jose Cantero 
GL Summit., c/o Goeffrey Summit, P.E. 

Proposed Maximum Development - 80 Units 
80.00 +/- Total Acres 

  Parcel ID #s:   24-20-27-0000-00-097, 24-20-27-0000-00-098, 24-20-27-0000-00-100,  
 24-20-27-0000-00-100, 24-20-27-0000-00-101, 24-20-27-0000-00-102,  
 24-20-27-0000-00-103, 24-20-27-0000-00-104, 024-20-27-0000-00-105 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

SUBJECT PROPERTY 

23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



Page 34 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - Golden Gem Estates, Phase 1B – 

owner/applicant Cantero Holdings, LLC, c/o Jose Cantero; engineer is GL 

Summit, c/o Geoffrey Summit, P.E., for the property generally located south of 

Kelly Park Road, north of the Ponkan Road and east of Golden Gem Road. 

(Parcel ID Nos.: 24-20-27-0000-00-097, 24-20-27-0000-00-98, 24-20-27-0000-

00-100, 24-20-27-0000-00-101, 24-20-27-0000-00-102,  24-20-27-0000-00-100-

103, 24-20-27-0000-00-104, 24-20-27-0000-00-105) 

  

34



CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  July 28, 2015 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 
          OTHER: Preliminary Development Plan     Site/Landscape Plan 
            
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN – GOLDEN GEM ESTATES - 
PHASE 1B  

 

Request: RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT 

PLAN FOR GOLDEN GEM ESTATES, PHASE 1B, OWNED BY CANTERO 

HOLDINGS, LLC. (PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 24-20-27-0000-00-097, 24-20-27-0000-

00-098, 24-20-27-0000-00-100, 24-20-27-0000-00-100, 24-20-27-0000-00-101, 24-20-27-

0000-00-102, 24-20-27-0000-00-103, 24-20-27-0000-00-104, 024-20-27-0000-00-105) 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Cantero Holdings, LLC., c/o Mr. Jose Cantero 
 
ENGINEER:   GL Summit., c/o Goeffrey Summit, P.E. 
 
LOCATION:               South of Kelly Park Road, north of the Ponkan Road and east of  

Golden Gem Road 
 
EXISTING USE:  Planted Pine Site 
 
FUTURE LAND USE:  Rural Settlement (1du/ac) 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  AG  
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: 12 Single Family Residential Subdivision\Mass Grading of Final Development 

Plans 
 
TRACT SIZE:              80 +/- Acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 80 Units  
    PROPOSED: 12 Units (Phase 1B)  
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer      Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director    Police Chief   
 
G:\Shared\4020\Planning_Zoning\Site Plans\2015\1 Golden Gem Estates PDP  – PC 07-28-15 
 35



PLANNING COMMISSION – JULY 28, 2015 

GOLDEN GEM ESTATES, PHASE 1B – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 2 
 

 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Mixed Use ZIP Vacant Land\Planted Pine Trees 

North (County) Rural (1du/10 ac/agricultural) A-1 Foliage Nursery 

East (County) Rural (1du/10 ac/agricultural) A-2  Manufactured Home\Grazing Land 

South (City) Rural Settlement(1du/ac)/Conservation ZIP Manufactured Home\Planted Pine Trees 

West (County) Rural (1du/10 ac/agricultural) A-1 Construction, Debris, and Class 3 Land Fill 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:   The proposed mass grading plan allows site grading to occur consistent with 

the ground elevations and contours established within the Golden Gem Estates-Phase 1B Preliminary Develop-

ment Plan.  All required permits from the St. Johns Water Management District and other state agencies must be 

obtained by the applicant prior to commencing any grading activities.   Planted pine has already been harvested 

from the subject property, leaving few canopy trees.   

 

HAUL ROUTE:  There has been a temporary access easement agreement established with the abutting proper-

ty owner to the east, granting direct access to Wekiva Parkway (S.R. 429) as illustrated on Sheet 4, of the Mass 

Grading Plan. 

  

ENVIRONMENTAL:  A habitat management plan was submitted by the applicant.  Based on the results of 

this study, the developer must obtain approval from the Florida Department of Environmental Protection prior 

to commencing any grading or further site construction activity. 

 

TREE PROGRAM: The planted pine located on this site is exempt from the arbor mitigation requirements and 

was harvested for silviculture purposes.  Pine trees have already been harvested from the site. The applicant will 

be required to demonstrate the site meets this tree stock requirement on the final development plan or contribute 

into the tree bank mitigation program, if applicable. 

 

LANDSCAPING\BUFFERS:    Per city code, a six-foot brick wall within a ten-foot landscape buffer is re-

quired along Golden Gem Road.  However, a brick wall will be out of character with the surrounding landscape 

and environment.  In lieu of a brick wall, a 50-foot wide landscape buffer is proposed.  The City owns acres to 

the south, the landfill is located to the west, and large lot residential uses occur to the south and north along 

Golden Gem Road.  Further north along Golden Gem Road, the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Area 

is just to the north along Golden Gem Road, and it promotes a pedestrian-oriented development theme.  Further, 

it is unreasonable to believe that a 12 lot residential development, which could be trailer homes, can financially 

support maintenance and replacement of a brick wall at such time it deteriorates or is damaged. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: No development activity beyond the grading activities approved within the 

Mass Grading Plan can occur until such time that a concurrency mitigation agreement or letter has been ap-

proved by OCPS.  The applicant has applied to OCPS for this agreement.  The developer has submitted a school 

capacity determination application to OCPS.  The schools designated to serve this community are the following: 

Zellwood Elementary, Wolf Lake Middle and Apopka High School.  

 
36



PLANNING COMMISSION – JULY 28, 2015 

GOLDEN GEM ESTATES, PHASE 1B – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 3 
 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The County was notified at the time of the land use amendment and 

rezoning application for this property, and coordination occurred with County planning staff regarding impact 

on adjacent parcels.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

July 28, 2015 – Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

August 5, 2015 – City Council (1:30 pm)  

 

WAIVERS 

 

1. Waiver Request #1:  Section 2.02.02.F., LDC.   Request to waive requirement for a 1,400 foot long, six foot 

high brick wall along Golden Gem Road.  Applicant requests a waiver to allow a planted 50’ landscape 

buffer in lieu of the construction of a screen wall.   

 

DRC recommendation -- DRC supports this waiver request for the following reasons:  (a) A homeowners 

association with only twelve homes is unlikely to financially maintain or replace a 1,400 foot long brick 

wall; (b) a 50 foot wide landscape buffer will be provided in lieu of a 10 foot wide buffer, and will suffice to 

provide sufficient screen and distance from the road, and residential setbacks will be measured from the 

buffer easement or tract line; and (c) an active landfill is located to the west of Golden Gem Road. 

 

2. Waiver Request #2:  Section 6.02.07, LDC. Request to waive the requirement for subdivision roadways to 

have “F” curb and closed drainage systems.  Applicant requests a waiver to allow for the use of a “Rural” 

roadway section utilizing swale drainage and no raised curb.  

 

 DRC recommendation -- DRC supports the waiver because the character of the subdivision is large-lot and 

this waiver has been applied to other similar residential developments such as Bluegrass Estates. 

 

3. Waiver Request #3: Section 6.04.01., LDC.  Request to waive the requirement for all development to 

connect to City water and sewer.  Applicant requests a waiver to allow the use of individual lot wells and 

septic systems in lieu of connecting to the City system.  

 

 DRC recommendation -- DRC does not support this waiver because policy within the City’s 

Comprehensive Plan requires that central water and sewer must be provided to the site, consistent with the 

intent of the outcome of regional actions emerging from the Wekiva River Basin Protection Study.   While 

the Land Development Code allows for the use of septic tanks, the standard is inconsistent with the below 

Policy of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

 Policy 1.5.9, Infrastructure Element of the Comprehensive Plan states:   

 

 “The use of septic tanks for new development may be undertaken on an interim basis, not to exceed five 

years, in cases where central sewer improvements necessary to serve the proposed development are 

scheduled for construction in the adopted Capital Improvements Program within that five year timeframe.  

The approval for and conditions of the use of septic tanks on an interim basis shall be at the sole discretion 

of the City.” 

  

37



PLANNING COMMISSION – JULY 28, 2015 

GOLDEN GEM ESTATES, PHASE 1B – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 4 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Golden Gem Estates Ph.1A – Preliminary 

Development Plan for the property owned by Cantero Holding, LLC  

 

Planning Commission Recommendation:  The role of the Planning Commission for this development 

application, is to advise the City Council to approve or deny based on the consistency with the Comprehensive 

Plan and Land Development Code which includes the following items: 

 

1. Recommend approval of Waiver Request number 1. 

 

2. Recommend approval of Waiver Request number 2. 

 

3. Recommend denial of Waiver Request number 3. 

 

4. Recommend approval of the Golden Gem Estates, Phase 1B, property owned by Cantero Holding, LLC. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

38



PLANNING COMMISSION – JULY 28, 2015 

GOLDEN GEM ESTATES, PHASE 1B – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 5 
 

Golden Gem Estates, Phase 1A 
Preliminary Development Plan 

Cantero Holdings, LLC., c/o Mr. Jose Cantero 
GL Summit., c/o Goeffrey Summit, P.E. 

Proposed Maximum Development - 80 Units 
80.00 +/- Total Acres 

  Parcel ID #s:   24-20-27-0000-00-097, 24-20-27-0000-00-098, 24-20-27-0000-00-100,  
 24-20-27-0000-00-100, 24-20-27-0000-00-101, 24-20-27-0000-00-102,  
 24-20-27-0000-00-103, 24-20-27-0000-00-104, 024-20-27-0000-00-105 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

SUBJECT PROPERTY 

39



SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

OF

CoverSheet

1 10

NOTE:

1. A PERMIT IS REQUIRED FROM FFWCC FOR REMOVAL OR
RELOCATION OF GOPHER TORTOISES PRIOR TO START OF
ANY SITE CONSTRUCTION.

2. THESE CONSTRUCTION PLANS WERE PREPARED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE MANUAL OF UNIFORM STANDARDS
FOR DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE FOR
STREETS AND HIGHWAYS, FDOT GREEN BOOK, CITY OF
APOPKA AND THE ORANGE COUNTY ROADWAY
SPECIFICATIONS.

40



SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

OF

Symbols &
Abbreviations

2 10

WATER & REUSE WATER

M

100 LF SAN 8 PVC 0.40%

SECTIONHIGHWAYCLASS SECTHWYCLS

EXTEND/EXTENSION
EXPAND/EXPANSION
EXISTING
EXCAVATE/EXCAVATION
ENDWALL
EACH WAY
ESTIMATE
EASEMENT
EQUIVALENT
EQUIPMENT
EQUAL/EQUATION
EDGE OF PAVEMENT
ENGINEER(ING)
ENCASEMENT
ELLIPSE/ELLIPTICAL
ELEVATION
ELECTRIC
ELBOW
EASEMENT LINE
EXISTING GRADE
EFFLUENT
EACH FACE
ENERGY DISSIPATOR
EDGE OF CONCRETE
EACH
EAST

DRIVEWAY
DRAWING
DRAIN
DOWN
DROP MANHOLE
DISTANCE
DISCHARGE
DUCTILE IRON PIPE
DIMENSION
DIAGONAL
DIAMETER
DUCTILE IRON
DESIGN HIGH WATER LEVEL
DETAIL
DEPARTMENT
DEFLECT(ION)
DEGREE
DOUBLE

CYLINDER
CUBIC YARD
CULVERT
CABLE TELEVISION
CENTER
COATING
CONTROL STRUCTURE
CONCRETE POWER POLE
COUPLING
CORNER
COORDINATE(S)
CONTINUOUS
CONSTRUCT(ION)
CONNECTION
CONCRETE
COMPLETE
COLUMN
CLEANOUT
COUNTY
CONDUIT
CORRUGATED METAL PIPE ARCH
CORRUGATED METAL PIPE
CONCRETE MONUMENT

EXT
EXP
EXIST
EXC
EWL
EW
EST
ESMT
EQUIV
EQUIP
EQ
EOP
ENG
ENC
ELLIP
ELEV
ELEC
ELB
E/L
EG
EFF
EF
ED
EC
EA
E

DWY
DWG
DRN
DN
DMH
DIST
DISCH
DIP
DIM
DIAG
DIA
DI
DHWL
DET
DEPT
DEFL
DEG OR °
DBL

CYL
CY
CULV
CTV
CTR
CTG
CS
CPP
CPLG
COR
COORD
CONT
CONST
CONN
CONC
COMP
COL
CO
CO.
CND
CMPA
CMP
CM

2221

16 15

NORTHNORTH

8

8

8

8

8

8" MISC. TREE

8" PALM TREE

8" PINE TREE

8" OAK TREE

8" MAPLE TREE

DIRT ROAD

BRICK PAVERS

99.50 SPOT ELEVATION

HANDICAP PARKING

GUY WIRE

SATALITE DISH

TRANSFORMER

TRAFFIC SIGNAL POLE

RR CROSSING GATE

R R RR CROSSING SIGN

DUMPSTER

MW MONITORING WELL

W WELL

E

T

ELECTRIC BOX /

TELEPHONE RISER

T TELEPHONE MANHOLE

E ELECTRIC MANHOLE

CONCRETE UTILITY POLE
SET 4x4 CM

RECOVERED IRON ROD

SET IRON ROD

CONCRETE LIGHT POLE

LIGHT POLE

BACKFLOW PREVENTOR

REUSE WATER MAINRM
Y

WV

FDOT TYPE 1 INLET 

FDOT TYPE 2 INLET 

FDOT TYPE 3 INLET

FDOT TYPE 4 INLET

FDOT TYPE 5 INLETFDOT TYPE 6 INLET

DELTA
AT
AND

YEAR
YARD

WELDED WIRE MESH
WELDED WIRE FABRIC
WATER VALVE
WEIGHT
WET SEASON WATER TABLE
WATER SURFACE
WOOD POWER POLE
WATER/WEATHER PROOF
WITHOUT
WATER MAIN
WITH
WEST

VERTICAL POINT OF TANGENCY
VERTICAL POINT OF INTERSECTION
VERTICAL POINT OF CURVE
VERTICAL
VITRIFIED CLAY PIPE
VERTICAL CURVE
VALVE BOX

UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE CABLE
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED
UNDERGROUND
UNDERDRAIN

TYPICAL
TOWNSHIP
TOP OF SLOPE
TOTAL
TOE OF SLOPE
TOP OF CURB
TOP OF BANK
TERMINAL LAMPHOLE
TEMPORARY
TECHNICIAN/TECHNICAL
TOTAL DYNAMIC HEAD
TRENCH DRAIN
TIME OF CONCENTRATION
TEMPORARY BENCH MARK
TOP AND BOTTOM
TURFBLOCK
TANGENT

SYSTEM
SYMMETRICAL
SYMBOL(S)
SIDEWALK
SOUTHWEST
SERVICE
SUSPEND/SUSPENSION
SUPPORT
STORM SEWER
STRUCTURE
STEEL
STANDARD
STATION
STREET
STAINLESS STEEL
STATE ROAD
SQUARE YARD(S)
SQUARE FOOT/FEET
SQUARE INCH(ES)
SQUARE
SPECIFICATION(S)
SHEET METAL
SLOPE
SETBACK LINE
SIMILAR
SEASONAL HIGH GROUND WATER TABLE
SHEET

OVERHEAD
OVERFLOW
OUTFALL STRUCTURE
OVAL REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE
OPPOSITE
OPENING
OR EQUAL
OUTSIDE DIAMETER
ON CENTER

NORMAL WATER LEVEL
NORTHWEST
NOT TO SCALE
NOMINAL
NUMBER
NOT IN CONTRACT
NATURAL GROUND
NORTHEAST
NAIL AND CAP
NOT APPLICABLE
NORTH

MOUNTING
MEAN SEA LEVEL
MILES PER HOUR
MONUMENT
MEAN LOW WATER LEVEL
METAL LIGHT POLE
MECHANICAL JOINT
MISCELLANEOUS
MINIMUM
MEAN HIGH WATER LEVEL
MANHOLE COVER
MANHOLE
MILLION GALLONS PER DAY
MANUFACTURER
MITERED END
MECHANICAL
MAXIMUM
MATERIAL
MAINTENANCE

LOW WATER LEVEL
LEFT
LONG
LIGHT POLE
LIMIT(S)
LONG
LINEAR FEET/FOOT
POUND
LATERAL
LATITUDE
LENGTH

JOINT
JOIST
JUNCTION
JUNCTION BOX

INVERT
INTERSECT/INTERSECTION
IRON ROD
IRON PIPE
INSTALL
INSERT
INLET
INCHES
INSIDE FACE
INSIDE DIAMETER
INTERSECTION ANGLE
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY

HYDRAULIC

@
&

YR
YD

WWM
WWF
WV
WT
WSWT
WS
WPP
WP
W/O
WM
W/
W

VPT
VPI
VPC
VERT
VCP
VC
VB

UTC
UON
UG
UD

TYP
TWP
TS
TOT
TOS
TOC
TOB
TL
TEMP
TECH
TDH
TD
TC
TBM
T&B
TB
T

SYS
SYMM
SYM
SWK
SW
SVC
SUSP
SUP
STS
STR
STL
STD
STA
ST
SS
SR
SQ YD
SQ FT
SQ IN
SQ
SPEC
SM
SL
S/L
SIM
SHGWT
SH

OVHD
OVFL
OS
ORCP
OPP
OPNG
OE
OD
OC

NWL
NW
NTS
NOM
NO OR #
NIC
NG
NE
N&C
NA
N

MTG
MSL
MPH
MON
MLWL
MLP
MJ
MISC
MIN
MHWL
MHC
MH
MGD
MFR
ME
MECH
MAX
MATL
MAINT

LWL
LT
LONG
LP
LIM
LG
LF
LB
LATL
LAT
L

JT
JST
JCT
JB

INV
INT
IR
IP
INST
INS
INL
IN
IF
ID
IA
I-4

HYD

EDGE OF PAVEMENT
W/O CURB

W/CURB
EDGE OF PAVEMENT

GUY POLEBENCHMARK

RECOVERED 4x4 CM

CONCRETE

COUNTY ROADS

INTERSTATE ROADS

WOOD AND/OR METAL

MISCELLANEOUS SIGN

SECTION CORNER

STATE ROADS

520

YARD LIGHT

WOOD UTILITY POLE

95

50

HIGHWAY & UTILITIES

D

STORM DRAIN

STORM SEWER

MANHOLE

MITERED END

STORM INLET

WATER METER

WATER MAIN 6" PVC PIPE WATER VALVE

FIRE HYDRANT

6"WM

WATER & REUSE WATER

ABBREVIATIONS

BFP BACKFLOW PREVENTER

CLEAR/CLEARANCE
CONCRETE LIGHT POLE
CENTER LINE
CONSTRUCTION JOINT
CAST IRON PIPE
CAST IRON
CURB AND GUTTER
CUBIC FEET PER SECOND
CUBIC FEET PER MINUTE
CUBIC FEET
CEMENT
CENTER TO CENTER
CATCH BASIN
CAPACITY

BUTTERFLY VALVE
BOTTOM OF SLOPE
BEARING
BOTTOM
BACK OF CURB
BLOWOFF
BOUNDARY
BENCH MARK
BOULEVARD
BUILDING
BASELINE

AZIMUTH
AVERAGE
AVENUE
ASSEMBLY
ASPHALT
AIR RELEASE VACUUM VALVE
AIR RELEASE VALVE
APPROXIMATE
AMPERE(S)
BEFORE NOON
ALTERNATE
ALUMINUM
AVERAGE DAILY TRAFFIC
ADDITIONAL
ASBESTOS CEMENT PIPE
ACRE FOOT/FEET
ACRE(S)
ABANDON(ED)
ANCHOR BOLT
AREA

CLR
CLP
C/L
CJ
CIP
CI
C&G
CFS
CFM
CF
CEM
CC
CB
CAP

BV
BS
BRG
BOT
BOC
BO
BND
BM
BLVD
BLDG
BL

AZ
AVG
AVE
ASSY
ASPH
ARVV
ARV
APPROX
AMP
AM
ALT
AL
ADT
ADDL
ACP
AC-FT
AC
ABD
AB
A

PROFILE GRADE POINTPFGP

FM

CABLE TELEVISION
UNDERGROUNDCTV

UGT

UE

GAS

OVERHEAD
TELEPHONE

OVERHEAD
ELECTRIC

UNDERGROUND
ELECTRIC

TELEPHONE

80

L

81

BUILDING LINE

CONTOURS

WOOD FENCE

RAILROAD TRACKS

GAS MAIN

UNDERGROUND

HIGH DENSITY POLYETHYLENEHDPE

SECONDS
SOUTHEAST
SHELF DRAIN
SIDE DRAIN
SCHEDULE
SPLASH BLOCK
SANITARY SEWER
SOUTH

REUSE WATER MAIN
RIGHT-OF-WAY
RELIEF VALVE
RIGHT
RAILROAD
REVOLUTIONS PER MINUTE
REVISE/REVISION
REQUIRED
REINFORCE(D)
REFERENCE
REDUCER
ROADWAY
ROAD
REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE ARCH
REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE
RADIUS

FLOW RATE

POWER
PAVEMENT
POLYVINYL CHLORIDE
POINT OF TANGENCY
POUNDS PER SQUARE INCH
POUNDS PER SQUARE FOOT
POINT OF REVERSE VERTICAL CURVE
PROPOSED
PROJECT
PRESSURE
POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE
PHONE RISER
POWER POLE
PUSH ON JOINT
POINT OF BEGINNING
PROPERTY LINE
POINT OF INTERSECTION

POLYETHYLENE PIPE
POINT OF COMPOUND CURVATURE
POINT OF CURVATURE

HIGH WATER LEVEL
HEADWALL
HEIGHT
HOUR
HORSEPOWER
HORIZONTAL
HARDWARE

HOSE BIBB

GROUND WATER TABLE
GUY WIRE
GATE VALVE AND BOX
GATE VALVE
GALVANIZED STEEL PIPE
GROUND/GRADE
GUARD RAIL
GALLONS PER SECOND
GALLONS PER MINUTE
GALLONS PER HOUR
GALLONS PER DAY
GAS MAIN
GALVANIZED
GALLON
GAUGE

FOOTING
FEET/FOOT
FEET PER SECOND
FEET PER MINUTE
FEET PER HOUR
FOUND
FORCE MAIN
FLANGE
FLEXIBLE
FLOOR
FENCE LINE
FITTING
FINISHED
FIGURE
FURNISH AND INSTALL
FIRE HYDRANT
FINISHED GRADE
FINISHED FLOOR
OF TRANSPORTATION
FLORIDA DEPARTMENT
FOUNDATION
FLOOR DRAIN
FRAME AND COVER

SEC
SE
SDN
SD
SCH
SB
SAN
S

RWM
R/W
RV
RT
RR
RPM
REV
REQD
REINF
REF
RED
RDY
RD
RCPA
RCP
R

Q

PWR
PVMT
PVC
PT
PSI
PSF
PRVC
PROP
PROJ
PRESS
PRC
PR
PP
POJ
POB
P/L
PI

PEP
PCC
PC

HWL
HW
HT
HR
HP
HORIZ
HDW

HB

GWT
GW
GV&B
GV
GSP
GRD
GR
GPS
GPM
GPH
GPD
GM
GALV
GAL
GA

FTG
FT
FPS
FPM
FPH
FND
FM
FLG
FLEX
FLR
FL
FIT
FIN
FIG
F&I
FH
FG
FF

FDOT
FDN
FD
F&C

S

S

SANITARY SEWER LINE

CLEANOUT

FORCE MAIN

MANHOLE

SANITARY

LINES

CHAIN LINK FENCE

CENTER LINE

WIRE FENCE

EASEMENT

GUARDRAIL 

EXISTING PLATS

RETAINING WALL

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE

SHORELINE

SWALE

x x

R/W

C

x

EXISTING SYMBOLS

UNDERDRAIN CEANOUT

RECLAIMED WATER MAINRM

2
24
901

24
901

21

16 15

22

CHECK VALVE

WATER SERVICE
DOUBLE REUSE

TYPE A

FF=98.76

PREVENTER
BACKFLOW

SP

REUSE WATER SYSTEM
CONNECTION

SAMPLE POINT

CROSS SECTION DETAIL

SERVICE

SERVICE

100 LINEAR FEET

PAVEMENT MARKING

MIAMI CURB

TYPE F CURB & GUTTER

BLDG OR STRUCTURE

W/ FHA LOT TYPE

50

95

SILT FENCE

TRAFFIC FLOW

UTILITY POLE

520

STATE ROADS

SECTION CORNER

SIGNS

LIGHT POLE

INTERSTATE ROADS

HANDICAP PARKING

GUY POLE

FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION

DUMPSTER PAD

DETAIL REFERENCE

COUNTY ROADS

CONCRETE

BOUND CORNER

STORM INLET

HIGHWAY & UTILITIES

SANITARY

WM

TEE

REDUCER

METER

FIRE HYDRANT

GATE VALVE

DOUBLE WATER 

CHECK VALVE
DOUBLE DETECTOR 

CROSS

BLOWOFF

90° BEND

45° BEND

22 1/2° BEND

11 1/2° BEND

WATER MAIN 

FM

MANHOLE

FORCE MAIN

DOUBLE SANITARY 

CLEANOUT

PIPE @ 0.40% SLOPE
SANITARY 8" PVC 

TREE LINE

SWALE

SHORELINE

C

80

SETBACK

P/L

R/W
FOR POND SIDE SLOPE

TYPE 1

TYPE 2

TYPE 3

TYPE 4

TYPE 5

TYPE 6

100 LF STS 24 RCP @ 0.20%

SPOT ELEVATION

SLOPE DIRECTION ARROW

MITERED END SECTION

MANHOLE

FDOT INLET

FDOT INLET

FDOT INLET

FDOT INLET

FDOT INLET

FDOT INLET

DRAINAGE FLOW DIRECTION

UNDERDRAIN 6" PVC PIPE

PIPE @ 0.20%
24" REINFORCED CONCRETE
100 LINEAR FEET STORM PIPE

STORM DRAINLINES

81

xx

SETBACK LINE

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE

RETAINING WALL

PROPERTY LINE

LOT LINE

GUARDRAIL 

EASEMENT

CONTOUR

CHAIN LINK FENCE

CENTER LINE

CONSERVATION

BOUNDARY

FENCE

PROPOSED SYMBOLS

100.00

41



SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

OF

Existing
Conditions

Plan

3 10

0120 120 240 48060

PROPERTY LINE
PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE

42



Area :4.99

Area :5.59

Area :5.00 Area :5.01 Area :5.01 Area :5.01 Area :5.01

Area :14.64

Area :5.01Area :5.01Area :5.01Area :5.01Area :6.63

811.68

62
8.

38

179.15

374.87

44
6.

04

437.71

49
8.

19

354.00

62
1.

30

178.41

150.57
127.03 351.00

62
1.

30

344.00 351.00

62
1.

30

351.00 351.00

62
1.

30

351.00 351.00

61
9.

05

55.82

84.1613.06216.53

217.53

1 3

.06 83.96

41
.1

9

54.92

61
9.

02

62
1.

30

351.00351.00

62
1.

37

351.00

468.25

13
22

. 4
5

491.53

351.00

62
1.

45

351.00351.00

62
1.

53

351.00

94
.1

5

39.

27 82.74

497.5
5

340.18

126.04
19

6.
18

371.3
7

85.26

39 .2 7

99.69

1

2

3 4 5 6 7

89101112

TRACT ATRACT A

TRACT A

TRACT B

TRACT B

SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

OF

Overall Site
Plan

4 10

0120 120 240 48060

CHANDLER FINE SANDS

CHANDLER-APOPKA FINE SANDS

TAVARES MILLHOPPER FINE SANDS

5

47

6

G
O

LD
EN

 G
EM

 R
O

A
D

FUTURE LAND USE: RURAL SETTLEMENT
ZONING: ZIP
EXISTING USE: MANUFACTURED HOMES

G
O

LD
EN

 G
EM

 R
O

A
D

FUTURE LAND USE: RURAL SETTLEMENT
ZONING: ZIP
EXISTING USE: PLANTED PINE TREE

FUTURE LAND USE: MIXED USE
ZONING: ZIP
EXISTING USE: VACANT/PLANTED PINE

FUTURE LAND USE: AG
ZONING: A-1
EXISTING USE: NURSERY

FU
TU

R
E 

LA
N

D
 U

S
E:

 R
U

R
A
L

Z
O

N
IN

G
: 

A
-2

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 U

S
E:

 M
A
N

U
FA

C
TU

R
ED

H
O

M
E,

 G
R
A
Z
IN

G
 L

A
N

D

FU
TU

R
E 

LA
N

D
 U

S
E:

 A
G

Z
O

N
IN

G
: 

A
-1

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 U

S
E:

 C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N

,
D

EB
R
IS

, 
C
LA

S
S
 3

 L
A
N

D
FI

LL

6

6

6

47

47 47 47

47

47

47

4747

47

47

47

47

47

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5
5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

47

SOILS LINE

SOILS LINE

50' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

ZONE X

ZONE X

ZONE XZONE X
ZONE X

ZONE X

ZONE X

ZONE X

43



Area :4.99

Area :5.59

Area :5.00 Area :5.01 Area :5.01 Area :5.01 Area :5.01

Area :14.64

Area :5.01Area :5.01Area :5.01Area :5.01Area :6.63

811.68

62
8.

38

179.15

374.87

44
6.

04

437.71

49
8.

19

354.00

62
1.

30

178.41

150.57
127.03 351.00

62
1.

30

344.00 351.00

62
1.

30

351.00 351.00

62
1.

30

351.00 351.00

61
9.

05

55.82

84.1613.06216.53

217.53 13.06

83.96

41
.1

9

54.92

61
9.

02

62
1.

30

351.00351.00
62

1.
37

351.00

468.25

13
22

. 4
5

491.53

351.00

62
1.

45

351.00351.00

62
1.

53

351.00

94
.1

5
39

.27 82.74

497.5
5

340.18

126.04

19
6.

18

371.3
7

85.26

3 9 .2 7

99.69

1

2

3 4 5 6 7

89101112

TRACT ATRACT A

TRACT A

TRACT B

TRACT B

SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

OF

Site Plan

5 10

0100 100 200 40050

50' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

35' SIDE SETBACK

50' REAR SETBACK

45' FRONT SETBACK

80' RIGHT-OF-WAY
10' UTILITY EASEMENT

24' PAVEMENT

35' SIDE SETBACK

50' REAR SETBACK

5' SIDEWALK
R50.0

R36.0

35' SIDE SETBACK

50' REAR SETBACK

R300.0

R275.0

100' RIGHT-OF-WAY

35' SIDE STREET SETBACK

10' UTILITY EASEMENT

50' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

35' SIDE SETBACK

50' REAR SETBACK

35' SIDE SETBACK

R35.0

35' SIDE SETBACK

10' UTILITY EASEMENT5' SIDEWALK

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPOSED
MONUMENT
ENTRY SIGN

10' LANDSCAPE EASEMENT

10' LANDSCAPE EASEMENT

10' LANDSCAPE EASEMENT

10' LANDSCAPE EASEMENT

44



1

2

3 4 5 6 7

89101112

TRACT ATRACT A

TRACT A

TRACT B

TRACT B

SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

OF

Paving &
Drainage Plan

6 10

0100 100 200 40050

50' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

50' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

TYPE 'A-MOD'

TYPE 'A-MOD'

TYPE 'A'TYPE 'A'TYPE 'A'TYPE 'A'

TYPE 'A'

TYPE 'A'

TYPE 'A' TYPE 'A' TYPE 'A' TYPE 'A'

100
10 ENTRANCE DRIVE

SECTION

102
10

ROADWAY
SECTION

118
10

DRY RETENTION
POND SECTION

ROADSIDE SWALE
CENTERLINE

ROADSIDE SWALE
CENTERLINE

ROADSIDE SWALE
CENTERLINE

ROADSIDE SWALE
CENTERLINE

PROPERTY LINE

45



1

2

3 4 5 6 7

89101112

TRACT ATRACT A

TRACT A

TRACT B

TRACT B

QV
25
VO
450

LI
3

LJ
1

QV
3

LI
3

QV
3

VO
50

SOD

SOD

SOD

SOD

SOD

QV
31

LC
75

SOD

SOD

SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

OF

Landscape
Plan

7 10

0100 100 200 40050

50' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

50' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

NOTE:

1. AN IRRIGATION PLAN & DESIGN MEETING THE CITY OF
APOPKA REQUIREMENTS WILL BE PROVIDED WITH THE
FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN.

2. LANDSCAPING & IRRIGATION PLANS SHALL BE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH LDC ARTICLE V, WATER-WISE
ORDINANCE NO. 2069.

3. IN ADDITION TO THE STREET TREES SHOWN EACH LOT
SHALL BE REQUIRED TO HAVE THREE (3) ADDITIONAL
TREES PLANTED ON THE LOT.46



SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

OF

Landscape
Details

8 10

12" 12"

6" MI
N.

6" 6"

6" MI
N.

6" MI
N.

12"12"

GENERAL LANDSCAPE NOTES
1.     ALL PLANTS TO BE FLORIDA NO. 1, OR BETTER AS OUTLINED UNDER 'GRADES AND                                7.     NO TREES SHALL BE PLANTED CLOSER THAN FIVE FEET (5') FROM THE EDGE OF PAVEMENT
       STANDARDS FOR NURSERY PLANTS, PART I, 1963 AND PART II, STATE OF FLORIDA                                         TO ALLOW ADEQUATE TREE TRUNK PROTECTION .
       DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA, AND ANY AMENDMENTS THERETO.             8.     LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE WHOLLY RESPONSIBLE FOR STABILITY AND PLUMB
2.    ALL TREES AND PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE PLANTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE                                           CONDITION OF ALL TREES AND SHALL BE LEGALLY LIABLE FOR ANY DAMAGE CAUSED
       SPECIFICATIONS DESCRIBED IN THE CITY OF APOPKA LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE                                          BY THE INSTABILITY OF ANY PLANT MATERIAL.
       LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS.                                                                                                                               9.     ALL LAWN AREAS TO RECEIVE SOD SHALL BE DISKED FOUR(4) TO SIX(6) INCHES AND
                                                                                                                                                                                                   DRAGGED TO ESTABLISH A LEVEL FINISH GRADE.  ALL DEBRIS TO BE REMOVED FROM
3.    THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR (CONTRACTED BY OWNER, N.I.C.)                                                                       THE SITE.
       SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL MATERIALS AND ALL WORK AS CALLED FOR ON THE                         10.    SOD SHALL BE FREE OF WEEDS AND PESTS.  IT SHALL BE LAID EVENLY AND ROLLED,
       LANDSCAPE PLANS.  THE LIST OF PLANT QUANTITIES ACCOMPANYING THE PLANS SHALL                             WITH TIGHT FITTING JOINTS.  THE SOD SHALL CONTAIN MOIST SOIL WHICH DOES NOT FALL
       BE USED AS A GUIDE ONLY.  IF A VARIATION OCCURS BETWEEN THE PLANS AND THE                                    APART OR TEAR WHEN LIFTED.  ALL AREAS NOT PAVED OR OTHERWISE LANDSCAPED
       PLANT LIST, THE PLANS SHALL CONTROL.                                                                                                                 SHALL BE SODDED. SOD SHALL BE ARGENTINE BAHIA OR EQUAL.
4.    ALL TREES, SHRUBS AND GROUND COVERS SHALL BE PLANTED USING A SOIL MIXTURE                       11.   ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS TO BE IRRIGATED WITH AN AUTOMATIC UNDERGROUND SYSTEM,
       PREPARED ACCORDINGLY (2/3 EXISTING SOIL, 1/3 PEAT).                                                                                      WITH 100% COVERAGE, BACKFLOW PREVENTOR, & RAIN SENSOR DEVICE.
5.    THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSURE ADEQUATE VERTICAL DRAINAGE IN ALL                                 DIRECT SPRAY HEADS AWAY FROM ANY NATURAL AREAS AND PAVED SURFACES.
       PLANT BEDS AND PLANTERS.  VERTICAL DRILLING THROUGH ANY COMPACTED FILL TO                        12.   THE TREE CALIPER OF ALL CANOPY TREES SPECIFIED ON THE PLANT LIST SHALL BE AT LEAST
       NATIVE SOIL SHALL BE ACCOMPLISHED TO AID DRAINAGE.                                                                                   THREE (2.5) INCHES IN DIAMETER WHEN MEASURED AT FIFTY-FOUR(54) INCHES ABOVE GRADE.
6.    ALL PLANT BEDS AND TREE WATERING BASINS SHALL BE TOP DRESSED WITH THREE                           13.    LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DAMAGE OCCURRING ON SITE
       INCHES (3") OF SHREDDED CYPRESS MULCH                                                                                                            OR ADJACENT AREAS, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO BUILDINGS, PAVING, UTILITIES, ETC.,
                                                                                                                                                                                                   WHICH IS CAUSED BY PREPARING OR INSTALLING ANY AND ALL PLANT MATERIAL.

.

1  MULTI-TRUNK DETAIL          NTS

PLANT LIST

3 SHRUB AND GROUND COVER DETAIL  NTS

TREE PLANTING DETAIL          NTS

  PALM PLANTING DETAIL           NTS

VIBURNUM 

 ( )

NOTE:

1. AN IRRIGATION PLAN & DESIGN MEETING THE CITY OF
APOPKA REQUIREMENTS WILL BE PROVIDED WITH THE
FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN.

2. LANDSCAPING & IRRIGATION PLANS SHALL BE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH LDC ARTICLE V, WATER-WISE
ORDINANCE NO. 2069.

47



SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

OF

General
Details 1

9 10

N.T.S.
TYPE 'P' & 'J' STRUCTURE BOTTOMS101

-

N.T.S.
TEMPORARY EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL100

-

EROSION CONTROL /SILT FENCE DETAIL102
-

48



SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

OF

General
Details  2

10 10

GOLDEN GEM ROAD GRADING SECTION
N.T.S.

*  SEE GRADING PLANS FOR TOP ELEVATIONS.

5% MAX. SLOPE

5' BERM

R
O

W
 L

IN
E

6' CHAIN-LINK W/SEDIMENT BARRIER

DRY RETENTION  POND CROSS SECTION
N.T.S.

VARIES

POND BOTTOM

1
6

89.75 89.75

80.00 80.00

SLOPE
TO BE SODDED

SEED & MULCH
POND BOTTOM

BERM
5'

CLEAN BACKFILL

90.0010yr.24hr. ELEV. = TBD
25yr.96hr. ELEV. = TBD
100yr.24hr. ELEV. = TBD

1
6

BERM
5'

90.00

1
4 MAX.

1
4 MAX

PR
O

PE
R
TY

 L
IN

E

BUFFER
20'

SLOPE
VARIES

CL

TYPICAL ROADWAY SECTION 'ENTRANCE ROAD' AT MEDIAN

90'

100
-

10'-0"
SOD

TYPE 'E' CURB
& GUTTER

PGL

2%

2'-4"10'-0"
SOD

PGL

2%

2'-4"

1.5" TYPE SP9.5
ASPHALT

2%

R
.O

.W
.

13.67'
SWALE

1'
DRIVE ISLE

18'

2%

50'

1' RIBBON
CURB

N.T.S.

8" CRUSHED CONCRETE BASE (MIN. LBR 160)
 95% MIN. AASHTO T-180 DENSITY

12" COMPACTED SUBGRADE
TO 95% PER AASHTO T-180

TOP 6" STABILIZED TO 50 LBR12" COMPACTED SUBGRADE
TO 95% PER AASHTO T-180

TOP 6" STABILIZED TO
MIN. FBV 50. EXTEND 1'
BEYOND BACK OF CURB

2%

TYPICAL ROADWAY CROSS SECTION

1.5" TYPE SP9.5
ASPHALT

2%

R
.O

.W
.

22'
ROADSIDE

SWALE

1'
DRIVE ISLE

12'

CL

2%

DRIVE ISLE

12' 1'

R
.O

.W
.

SIDEWALK

5'

12" COMPACTED SUBGRADE
TO 95% PER AASHTO T-180

TOP 6" STABILIZED TO 50 LBR

40'

80'

40'

8" CRUSHED CONCRETE BASE (MIN LBR 160)
 98% MIN. AASHTO T-180 DENSITY

1" RIBBON
CURB

1' RIBBON
CURBPGL 2%

U
TI

LI
TY

 E
A

SE
M

E
N

T

10' UTILITY/
SIDEWALK
EASEMENT

10' UTILITY/
SIDEWALK
EASEMENT

12" COMPACTED SUBGRADE
TO 95% PER AASHTO T-180

TOP 6" STABILIZED TO
MIN. FBV 50. EXTEND 1'
BEYOND BACK OF CURB

12" COMPACTED SUBGRADE
TO 95% PER AASHTO T-180
TOP 6" STABILIZED TO
MIN. FBV 50. EXTEND 1'
BEYOND BACK OF CURB

N.T.S.

5'
SIDEWALK LANDSCAPE

22'

N.T.S.
STANDARD SIDEWALK DETAIL103

-

4' S/W

2"
 T

YP
.

4"

CONCRETE WALK AT 3,000 PSI
WOOD FLOAT FINISH. SAW CUT
CONTRACTION JOINTS AT 5' O.C. MIN.
EXPANSION JOINT AT 20' O.C. MIN

COMPACTED SUBGRADE

NOTE: ALL SIDEWALK TO BE CONSTRUCTED AS PART OF INFRASTRUCTURE

PAVEMENT

CONCRETE RIBBON CURB

12" STABILIZED SUBGRADE 

COMPACTED SUBGRADE

N.T.S.

12"

12"

12"

BASE

9"

300R
-

SHWL. = 70.00 (PER GEOTECHINCAL REPORT)

49



Page 50 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – Marden Ridge – owned by Emerson Point 

Associates, LLLP; Applicant MMI Development, Inc., c/o Michael E. Wright, 

Esq.; Engineer GAI Consultants, Inc., c/o Anthony Call, P.E., property located 

Between S.R. 451 and Marden Road, south of Ocoee Apopka Road, and north 

of the Apopka Expressway. (Parcel ID No.: 17-21-28-0000-00-029) 

  

50



CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  July 28, 2015 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 
          OTHER:          Site Plan  
                                                                                                                                    Architecture Elevations 

            Landscape Plan 
                      Hardscape Plan 

Lighting Plan 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: MARDEN RIDGE APARTMENTS, PHASE 1B - FINAL DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN   

 

Request: RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE MARDEN RIDGE APARTMENTS, 
PHASE 1B, FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN.  (PARCEL ID NUMBER: 17-
21-28-0000-00-029) 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
SUMMARY 
 
OWNERS:   Emerson Point Associates, LLLP 
 
APPLICANT:   MMI Development, Inc., c/o Michael E. Wright, Esq. 
 
ENGINEER:   GAI Consultants, Inc., c/o Anthony Call, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: Between S.R. 451 and Marden Road, south of Ocoee Apopka Road, and north of 

the S.R. 414 
 
EXISTING USE:  Planted Pine 
 
FUTURE LAND USE:  Residential High (0-15du/ac) 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  R-3  
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Apartment (272 units/5 Buildings)  
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-3)  
 
TRACT SIZE:   Apartments: 18.05 +/- Acres  

Overall Site: 42.17 +/- Acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 536 Units (35.74 ac) 
    PROPOSED: 272 Units (Phase 1B) on 18. 05 ac 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer      Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director    Police Chief   
 
G:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Site Plans\2015\Marden Ridge Apartment Ph.B- Final Development Plan PC 07-28-15 51



PLANNING COMMISSION – JULY 28, 2015 

MARDEN RIDGE APARTMENTS, PHASE 1 B – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 2 
 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Commercial C-1 Vacant Land 

East (City) 

East County 

Res. Medium (0-10 du/ac) 

Low Medium Density Res. (10 du/ac) 

R-3 

R-2 

Vacant Land 

Apartments 

South (City) Mixed Use (0-15 du/ac) M-EC Vacant Land 

West (City) Industrial I-1 Northwest Distribution 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The Marden Ridge Apartments, Phase 1B, Final Development Plan proposes 

272 apartment units located on approximately 18.05 acres within 42.17 +/- acres site.  The overall site is com-

prised of 6.43 acres being designated for Commercial (C-1) use and 35.74 acres of the property designated for 

Residential High (PUD/R-3) use.  Development of the remaining 17.69 acres of residential land will occur at a 

later date through a separate Preliminary Development Plan application, as will development of the 6.43 acres 

of land assigned the C-1 commercial zoning category.  The developer has proposed five (5), four (4) story 

buildings at approximately fifty-eight (58) feet in height; with a projected population of 784 people.  The 

PUD/R-3 zoning district allows for the construction of apartments with a minimum living area of 750s.f. per 

unit.   

 

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS:  The design of the building exterior meets the intent of the City’s Development 

Design Guidelines.   

 

PARKING: The developer has proposed 544 parking spaces which meet the City’s Land Development Code.  

 

LDC 6.03.02. - Number of parking spaces required.  

 

Residential dwelling units, single-family, duplex, multifamily 2 spaces per dwelling unit 

 

ACCESS:  Ingress/egress for the development will be via two (2) full access points from Marden Road.     

 

STORMWATER:  The stormwater management system includes on-site retention ponds.  The developer has 

provided three (3) dry retention ponds designed to meet the City’s Land Development Code requirements. 

 

RECREATION: The developer is proposing 2.98 acres (129,809 sq. ft.) of passive and active recreation space.  

Some of the proposed amenities: clubhouse (6,183s.f.), swimming pool and tot lot. At the time of the final de-

velopment plan application, details of active and passive recreation equipment and facilities will be submitted 

for the City’s review.   

 

ENVIRONMENTAL:  A habitat management plan was submitted by the applicant.  Based on the results of 

this study, the developer must obtain approval from the Florida Department of Environmental Protection prior 

to commencing any site construction activity. 

 

OPEN SPACE: The developer is proposing 12.89 acres of open space to meet the thirty (30) percent PUD zon-

ing standards.  

 
52



PLANNING COMMISSION – JULY 28, 2015 

MARDEN RIDGE APARTMENTS, PHASE 1 B – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 3 
 

TREE PROGRAM: The planted pine located on this site is exempt from the arbor mitigation requirements and 

was harvested for silviculture purposes.  The maximum tree stock formula requires a total of 2,752 tree inches 

to be replanted onto the site.  The applicant will be required to demonstrate the site meets this tree stock re-

quirement on the final development plan or contribute into the tree bank mitigation program.   

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: No development activity can occur until such time that a concurrency miti-

gation agreement or letter has been approved by OCPS.  The applicant has applied to OCPS for this agreement. 

The schools designated to serve this community are the following: Wheatley Elementary, Wolf Lake Middle 

and Apopka High School.  

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The County was notified at the time of the land use amendment and 

rezoning application for this property, and coordination occurred with County planning staff regarding impact 

on adjacent parcels.   

 

BUFFERS:  The applicant is requesting a waiver to install a six-foot high wrought iron fence between brick 

columns for the perimeter wall, erected inside a ten foot landscaped buffer along Marden Road and State Road 

451.  

 

WAIVER REQUESTS 

 

1. The applicant is requesting a waiver from LDC 2.02.07.H.1a, which requires a six-foot-high brick, stone or 

decorative block finished wall to be placed within a 10 foot wide buffer adjacent to Marden Road, erected 

inside a minimum ten-foot landscaped bufferyard.  The applicant is proposing a six-foot high wrought iron 

fence between brick columns with additional landscaping adjacent to external roads. 

 

 DRC reviewed the waiver request and can support it because the nearest building is setback at 

least 60 feet from the road; additional landscaping is provided; the apartment buildings are 58 

feet high and four stories, preventing a wall from screening buildings form adjacent  properties; 

and the parking lot will be screened by the buffer landscaping.  Attached illustrations provided by 

the applicant support the DRC recommendation. 

 

2. The applicant is requesting a waiver from LDC 2.02.07.H.1a, which requires a six-foot-high brick, stone or 

decorative block finished wall adjacent to S.R. 451, erected inside a minimum ten-foot landscaped buffer-

yard.  The applicant is requesting to eliminate portions of the perimeter fencing along the western property 

boundary, in lieu of an earth berm with landscaping.  

 

 DRC reviewed the waiver request and can support it because S.R. 451 is elevated and  additional 

landscaping and a berm are provided.  Attached illustrations provided by the applicant support 

the DRC recommendation. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

July 14, 2015 - Planning Commission (5:01 pm) -Tabled 

July 28, 2015 - Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

August 5, 2015- City Council (1:30 pm) 

  

53



PLANNING COMMISSION – JULY 28, 2015 

MARDEN RIDGE APARTMENTS, PHASE 1 B – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 4 
 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Marden Ridge Apartments, Phase 1B, 

Final Development Plan subject to the information and comments in the staff report for the property owned by 

Emerson Point Associates, LLLP. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on July 14, 2015, tabled the Marden Ridge Apartments, Phase 1B, 

Final Development Plan until the July 28, 2015 meeting. 

 

Planning Commission Recommendation:  The role of the Planning Commission for this development 

application is to advise the City Council to approve or deny based on consistency with the Comprehensive Plan 

and Land Development Code which includes the following items: 

 

1. Recommend approval of Waiver Request number 1. 

 

2. Recommend approval of Waiver Request number 2. 

 

3. Recommend approval of the Marden Ridge Apartments, Phase 1B, property owned by Emerson Point 

Associates, LLLP. 

  

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

54



PLANNING COMMISSION – JULY 28, 2015 

MARDEN RIDGE APARTMENTS, PHASE 1 B – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 5 
 

Marden Ridge Apartments Phase 1B, 
Final Development Plan 

Emerson Point Associates, LLLP 
MMI Development, Inc. c/o Michael E. Wright, Esq. 

Apartments: 18.05 +/- Acres (272 Units) 
42.17 +/- Total Acres 

Parcel ID #: 17-21-28-0000-00-029 
 

VICINITY MAP 

Subject 
Property 

55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71


	Top
	1. 07-28-15 - PC - Site Plans - Final Development Plan - Elro Properties, LLC
	1 Elro Properties, LLC- FDP PC 07-28-15.pdf
	2 Elro Properties LLC Site_Landscape Plans.pdf
	3 Elro Properties LLC Elevations.pdf

	2. 07-28-15 - PC - Site Plans - Mass Grading Plan - Golden Gem Estates, Phase 1A
	1 Golden Gem Estates Mass Grading Plan - PC 07-28-15.pdf
	2 Golden Gem Estates Master Grading Plan.pdf

	3. 07-28-15 - PC - Site Plans - Preliminary Development Plan - Golden Gem Estates, Ph. 1B
	1 Golden Gem Estates PDP - PC 07-28-15.pdf
	2 Golden Gem Estates PDP Plans.pdf

	4. 07-28-15 - PC - Site Plans - Final Development Plan - Marden Ridge Apartments
	1 Marden Ridge Apartments PDP - PC 07-28-15.pdf
	2 Marden Ridge Apartments Site Plan.pdf
	3 Marden Ridge Apartments Architectural Elements.pdf
	4 Marden Ridge Apartments Landscape Plan.pdf
	5 Marden Ridge Apartments Hardscape Plan.pdf
	6 Marden Ridge Apartments Lighting Plan.pdf

	Bottom

